
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 
CABINET (POLICY AND RESOURCES) SUB COMMITTEE (SPECIAL) 

 
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING CABINET (POLICY AND RESOURCES) 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY, 29 AUGUST 2023 

 
MULTI-LOCATION MEETING – COUNCIL CHAMBER PORT TALBOT 

AND MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
ALL MOBILE TELEPHONES TO BE SWITCHED TO SILENT FOR THE 

DURATION OF THE MEETING 
 

Webcasting/Hybrid Meetings: 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 

Council’s Internet Site.  By participating you are consenting to be filmed 
and the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 

webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
 

Part 1 
 

1.  Appointment of Chairperson   
 

2.  Chairpersons Announcement/s   
 

3.  Declarations of Interest   
 

4.  Public Question Time   
Questions must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services – 
democratic.services@npt.gov.uk – no later than two working days 
prior to the meeting. Questions must relate to items on the agenda. 
Questions will be dealt with in a 10 minute period. 
 

5.  Miscellaneous Grant Fund Application (Showmen's Guild South 
Wales and Northern Ireland)  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

mailto:democratic.services@npt.gov.uk


6.  Miscellaneous Grant Fund Application (Tonna Carnival Committee)  
(Pages 9 - 12) 
 

7.  Urgent Items   
Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the 
Chairperson pursuant to Regulation 5(4)(b) of Statutory Instrument 
2001 No. 2290 (as amended). 
 

 
K.Jones 

Chief Executive 
 

Civic Centre 
Port Talbot 22 August 2023 
 
 
 
Cabinet (Policy and Resources) Sub Committee Members:  
 
Councillors. S.K.Hunt, S.A.Knoyle and A.Llewelyn 
 



 

 
NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
CABINET (POLICY AND RESOURCES) SUB COMMITTEE 

 
29th AUGUST 2023 

 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER  

– HUW JONES 
 
Matters for Decision  
 
Wards Affected:  ALL  
 
Report Title – Miscellaneous Grant Fund Application (The 
Showmen’s Guild South Wales and Northern Ireland) 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
To seek Member approval in relation to a grant application received. 
 
Background and Financial Impacts 
 
The Council has a Miscellaneous Grants Scheme to support 
individual applications for grants in line with the criteria set out 
below:-   
 
Existing Policy Statement 
 
- Each application will be considered on its merits. 

 
- The Committee will only approve applications for financial 
assistance from voluntary or charitable organisations which are 
manifestly committed to voluntary endeavours of a local nature. This 
will not preclude the consideration of applications where the disposal 
of funds is outside the area but still provides significant benefits for 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



the people from the Neath Port Talbot area. 
 
 
- No applications will be considered from religious bodies except 
relating to church halls and other premises where there is significant 
community use of the property for non-religious activities. 

 
- No applications will be considered from other public funded bodies 
such as community councils, hospital trusts, etc. or where the 
benefit may be in lieu of their contributions such as appeals for 
hospital equipment. 

 
- Applications from individuals may be considered where both the 
person and the community derive a benefit. 

 
- No grants will be made to any individual or organisation whose 
prime purpose is to distribute their funds to other charitable bodies. 

 
Details of application 
 
Following discussions with officers in the Environment Directorate a 
grant application has been received from the Showmen’s Guild South 
Wales and Northern Ireland.  
 
The Council have been approached again by the Showman’s Guild to 
allow them to stage the Neath September Fair this year between the 
12th September 2023 to the 16th September 2023.  However, in 
order to stage the event will be required to close off Milland Road Car 
Park between the 10th September – 17th September 2023 to allow the 
Showman’s Guild of Great Britain to safety set up and close down the 
event.  
 
In order to facilitate the above the Estates department of the Council 
charges the Showmen’s Guild a rent/fee which is contractually 
increased each year in line with the Retail Price Index.  The charge 
for this year’s fair in line with this contractual arrangement is £31k. 

Page 4



The rent/fee charged by the Council is then used to offset the Council 
costs not only in respect of the Fun Fair itself but also for running and 
operating the September Street Fair as well. 
 
The Showmen’s Guild have indicated that for the reasons set out 
below they cannot meet the cost of £31k and have applied for a 
miscellaneous grant of £11k.  They have indicated that if the grant 
application is not successful then the funfair and street fair will not go 
ahead this year. 
 
Basis of application 
 
The Showmen’s Guild have applied for assistance to support the 
upcoming Neath September Fair.  In particular, the soaring costs of 
renting spaces at the fairgrounds has made it exceedingly difficult for 
the showmen to operate profitably. 
 
The fair has long been an integral part of the local community, 
providing not only entertainment but also a platform for market 
traders to showcase their goods and services. Unfortunately, recent 
austerity measures and the ongoing impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic have placed an enormous strain on the showmen 
community. Many showmen are struggling to make ends meet as 
they face decreased revenue and increased operational costs due to 
health and safety requirements. 
 
The showmen community has been severely impacted by the 
COVID-19 pandemic, which not only disrupted their livelihoods but 
also caused significant financial hardships. Coupled with declining 
footfall, rising living costs, and austerity measures, these challenges 
have had a profound effect on the ability of showmen to make a 
sustainable living.   Unlike some other organisations, the Showmen 
did not receive grants during the pandemic, making their situation 
even more challenging. 
 
It is proposed that Members consider approving the grant application 

Page 5



of £11k on a one-off basis with further work to be undertaken 
regarding events in general across the County Borough where the 
Council is asked to make a financial commitment to. 
 
 
Integrated Impact Assessment  
 
There are no impacts in respect of the obligations to the Council 
under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh Language Standards (No 1) 
Regulations 2015, the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 and support via 
this grant provides generally a positive impact in respect of the 
Wellbeing and Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.   
 
Valleys Communities Impacts 
 
Applications for grant are available to voluntary and charitable 
organisations across the county borough. 
 
Workforce Impacts 
 
There are no workforce impacts. 
 
Legal Impacts 
 
Grants are provided in line with the approved scheme criteria. 
 
Risk Management Impacts  
 
All grant applications are considered on their own merit and in line 
with the approved scheme criteria. 
 
Consultation  
 
There is no requirement for external consultation on this item.  
 
 

Page 6



 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that Members approve the one off application for 
grant assistance in the amount of £11,000 to the Showmen’s Guild 
South Wales and Northern Ireland. 
 
Reason for Proposed Decision 
 
To decide on the amount of financial support in respect of the grant 
application received. 
 
Implementation of Decision 
 
The decision is an urgent one for immediate implementation, subject 
to the consent of the relevant Scrutiny Chair and is therefore not 
subject to the call-in procedure 
 
List of Background Papers 
 
Grant Application 
 
Officer Contact 
 
Mr. Huw Jones – Chief Finance Officer 
Email: h.jones@npt.gov.uk  
 
Mr. Craig Griffiths – Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
Email: c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk 
 

Page 7

mailto:h.jones@npt.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
CABINET (POLICY AND RESOURCES) SUB COMMITTEE 

 
29th AUGUST 2023 

 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER  

– HUW JONES 
 
Matters for Decision  
 
Wards Affected:  Resolven and Tonna  
 
Report Title – Miscellaneous Grant Fund Application (Tonna 
Carnival Committee) 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
To seek Member approval in relation to a grant application received. 
 
Background and Financial Impacts 
 
The Council has a Miscellaneous Grants Scheme to support 
individual applications for grants in line with the criteria set out 
below:-   
 
Existing Policy Statement 
 
- Each application will be considered on its merits. 

 
- The Committee will only approve applications for financial 
assistance from voluntary or charitable organisations which are 
manifestly committed to voluntary endeavours of a local nature. This 
will not preclude the consideration of applications where the disposal 
of funds is outside the area but still provides significant benefits for 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



the people from the Neath Port Talbot area. 
 
 
- No applications will be considered from religious bodies except 
relating to church halls and other premises where there is significant 
community use of the property for non-religious activities. 

 
- No applications will be considered from other public funded bodies 
such as community councils, hospital trusts, etc. or where the benefit 
may be in lieu of their contributions such as appeals for hospital 
equipment. 
 
- Applications from individuals may be considered where both the 
person and the community derive a benefit. 

 
- No grants will be made to any individual or organisation whose 
prime purpose is to distribute their funds to other charitable bodies. 

 
Details of application 
 
Grant Assistance has been requested by Tonna Carnival Committee, 
on a one off basis, to assist in the provision of a community carnival 
which is held on the last Saturday of June each year.  The Committee 
rely solely on fundraising throughout the year by organising 
community events.  No entry fees are charged in order to make the 
Carnival accessible to all, and encourage local businesses to trade 
on the day, to try and support community businesses.   Local clubs, 
such as dance troupes, Karate clubs, Ukulele bands, and drama 
clubs are also welcome to hold displays to advertise what they have 
available to the local community. Any profits made are re-invested 
into providing other events to benefit the local community. 
 
The Carnival organisers faced a last minute requirement to put in 
place traffic management arrangements which were not included in 
any of the costings for the carnival hence this one off request for a 
miscellaneous grant. 

Page 10



 
 
 

Integrated Impact Assessment  
 
There are no impacts in respect of the obligations to the Council 
under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh Language Standards (No 1) 
Regulations 2015, the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 and support via 
this grant provides generally a positive impact in respect of the 
Wellbeing and Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.   
 
Valleys Communities Impacts 
 
Applications for grant are available to voluntary and charitable 
organisations across the county borough. 
 
Workforce Impacts 
 
There are no workforce impacts. 
 
Legal Impacts 
 
Grants are provided in line with the approved scheme criteria. 
 
Risk Management Impacts  
 
All grant applications are considered on their own merit and in line 
with the approved scheme criteria. 
 
Consultation  
 
There is no requirement for external consultation on this item.  
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that Members approve the one off application for 
grant assistance in the amount of £900 to Tonna Carnival Committee. 
 
Reason for Proposed Decision 
 
To decide on the amount of financial support in respect of the grant 
application received. 
 
 
Implementation of Decision 
 
The decision is an urgent one for immediate implementation, subject 
to the consent of the relevant Scrutiny Chair and is therefore not 
subject to the call-in procedure 
 
List of Background Papers 
 
Grant Application 
 
 
Officer Contact 
 
Mr. Huw Jones – Chief Finance Officer 
Email: h.jones@npt.gov.uk  
 
Mr. Craig Griffiths – Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
Email: c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk 
 

Page 12

mailto:h.jones@npt.gov.uk

	Agenda
	5 Miscellaneous Grant Fund Application (Showmen's Guild South Wales and Northern Ireland)
	6 Miscellaneous Grant Fund Application (Tonna Carnival Committee)

